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OUR REGION

The Goldfields-Esperance Region is located in the south-eastern corner of the State and
comprises nine local government areas over an area of 771,276 km 2 , which makes the region
over three times the size of the state of Victoria, and just under a third of Western Australia's
total land mass. It is the largest region in Western Australia, with a population of close to
62,000 people (2013). The Local Government areas are the City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder, the
Shires of Coolgardie, Dundas, Esperance, Ravensthorpe, Menzies, Leonora, Laverton and
Ngaanyatjarraku.

KEY FACTS

Famously rich in minerals, the Goldfields-Esperance region has founded its growth on a
strong mining industry. It is the second most important mining region in Western Australia,
with the value of production increasing from $4.3 billion in 2002-03 to $9.1 billion in 2012-13.
This represents, an average growth rate of eight per cent per year, and accounts for nine
per cent (9%) of the state's mining production.

r. As of 2013 the Goldfields-Esperance region accounted for 65% of the State gold
production and 81% of the State nickel production*. Gold mining constituted 63% of the
value of regional mineral production in 2013, equating to just over $5.6 billion.

k The coastal part of the Goldfields-Esperance region enjoys a mixed economy of
agriculture, fisheries, mining and tourism. Esperance port is the deepest in the Southern
Hemisphere.

In 2011-12 agricultural production for the Goldfields-Esperance region was estimated at
$569 million, accounting for eight per cent of the state's total agricultural value, 83% being
crop production.

■ The region's labour force is just above 29,000 people, with an unemployment rate of
4.1% in 2013, up from a record low of 2.3% in 2012.

■ In the recent Living in the Regions 2013 Survey, Goldfields-Esperance region residents
rated their safety amongst the highest of all regions.

*Source: REMPLAN Economic Profile, GEDC website July 2014, and Department of Minerals & Petroleum's
Western Australian Mineral and Petroleum Statistics Digest 2013.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
THE HONOURABLE TERRY REDMAN, MLA
Minister for Regional Development; Lands; Minister Assisting the Minister for State
Development.

In accordance with Section 63 of the Financial Management Act 2006, we hereby submit
for your information and presentation to Parliament, the Annual Report of the Goldfields-
Esperance Development Commission for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

The Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission was established under the Regional
Development Commissions Act 1993.

In the performance of its functions the Commission complies with the following relevant
written laws including but not limited to:

Auditor General Act 2006
Corruption and Crime Commission Act 2003
Disability Services Act 1993
Equal Opportunity Act 1984
Financial Management Act 2006
Freedom of Information Act 1992
Government Employees Super Act 1987
Government Employees Housing Act
Government Financial Responsibility Act 2000
Industrial Relations Act 1979
Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993
Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984
Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003
Public Sector Management Act 1994
Royalties for Regions Act 2009
Salary & Allowances Act 1975
State Records Act 2000
State Superannuation Act 2000
State Supply Commission Act 1991
Workers Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial
Management Act 2006.

In the financial administration of the Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission, we
have complied with the requirements of the Financial Management Act 2006 and every other
relevant written law, and exercised controls which provide reasonable assurance that the
receipt and expenditure of moneys and the acquisition and disposal of public property and
incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with legislative provisions.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the
particulars in this statement misleading or inaccurate.

Iony Crook	 Steve iobins
Chairman	 Acting Chief Executive Officer
3 September 2014	 3 September 2014
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FROM THE CHAIRMAN

As newly appointed Chairman
of the Goldfields-Esperance
Development Commission

(GEDC) I am pleased to presentthe 2013-14
Annual Report.

The past twelve months have been
particularly challenging for the Commission
on a number internal and external fronts but
on the positive side, Royalties for Region
has brought to the Goldfields wonderful
opportunities for real regional development.

The Commission worked through a number
of operational issues and the departure
of long standing CEO, Robert Hicks. An
Acting CEO, appointed early in 2014, left
a few months later and the search for
a new permanent CEO was hampered
by the state wide recruitment freeze.
Operational improvements are now in train
and the recruitment process underway for
a permanent CEO. Adequately resourcing
the Commission across such a large area
remains a challenge and is a key focus
point in discussion with our Minister.

The Region's principal economic driver, the
mining industry is still experiencing difficult
times, but there is light at the end of the
tunnel with an improvement in commodity
prices, a reduction is production costs
and a general improvement in sentiment
across the sector. Nickel and gold remain
stable commodities for the region and
the emerging Yilgarn iron ore province
presents an excellent opportunity for future
economic development. We must not forget
the agriculture, pastoral, tourism, service
provision, education, new technology and
other economic diversity opportunities
within our region and these will be a key
focus point for the Commission in the
coming year.

The Goldfields-Esperance region secured
$186M from Royalties for Region to the
Goldfields-Esperance Revitalisation Fund,

consolidating the GEDC's relevance as
a key player in the region's economic
development and involvement in the
community. The funds will be spent in
the region over the next four years to
develop high priority projects as outlined
in the Regional Strategic plan and
Regional Investment Blueprint (RIB). The
construction of a Regional Office and
Administration Centre in Leonora and a
Community Centre in Hopetoun are the
first projects to receive the go ahead.

The GEDC is in the process of completing
one of the requirements arising out of the
Duncan Review into Regional Development
Commissions, the development of a
Regional Investment Blueprint, which is to
be released for public comment in the near
future. This document will be an invaluable
tool to assist government, industry and the
community in future planning and decision
making for the region. Furthermore, the
RIB will be an integral document enabling
a co-ordinated approach across whole
of government for improved regional
development outcomes.

The GEDC continues to champion the
PortLink concept, an aggregation of
projects aiming at creating a stronger,
more robust State Freight Network and
open up the Goldfields-Esperance, Pilbara
and Mid West regions to regional and
whole of state development opportunities.
This transformational project is currently
in the feasibility stages with completion
scheduled in the coming year.

Some of the major projects completed
this year include the upgrade of the
Esperance Port Access Corridor, opened
to traffic in February and major revamp
of the Esperance waterfront. These are
among the many projects completed or
under construction within the Goldfields-
Esperance region.

The GEDC continues to have strong working
relations with key regional stakeholders
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such as Regional Development Australia
Goldfields-Esperance, the Chambers of
Commerce, the Chamber of Minerals and
Petroleum, State Government Agency
Regional Managers and Local Government.

The Regional Development Council
continues to be an effective mechanism for
regional decision making and I commend
the efforts of Council and secretariat for
their tireless efforts in raising the regional
development bar within Government and
Industry.

The Commission's relationship with the
new Minister for Regional Development,
Ministerial staff and the Department
of Regional Development and Lands
continues to be effective, despite a number
of changes throughout the year.

I would like to welcome new Board Members,
Matthew Taylor, John Bowler, Malcolm

Heasman, Gail Adamson-Reynolds, Kate
Fielding Christine Boase and Kevin Doig
who bring extensive experience and
valuable knowledge of the Goldfields-Es-
perance region to contribute to, and guide
the strategic direction of the Commission.
I look forward to working closely with my
fellow Board members and the Commission
staff in an exciting year ahead.

In closing I wish to acknowledge the
contributions of past Chairman Jon Price,
Deputy Chairman Ron Mosby and Board
Members Larry Hamilton, Tony Bright,
Wayne Rogers and Tracy Browning, and
thank GEDC board and staff for their
commitment and enthusiasm over the past
year and, their continued passion for our
great region.

Tony Crook
Chairman
3 September 2014

6
Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission Annual Report 30 June 2014



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2013-14 has been a challenging year for
the Goldfields-Esperance Development
Commission, on strategic and operational
fronts. Long standing CEO, Robert Hicks,
left the Commission in February, Acting
CEO Norman Baker left after 4 months,
before a permanent replacement had been
appointed. The process was hampered
by the recruitment freeze applying to
government agencies but is now in progress.
The Board operated at a reduced capacity
for most of the year as appointments took
longer than expected.

Significant progress has been made in
resolving governance issues and revising
organisational structure at the Commission
and the coming year promises to be
exciting, with a new executive team and an
almost new Board, determined to achieve
increased economic and social growth in
the region.

The two main highlights of the year for the
GEDC have been the development of the
Goldfields-Esperance Regional Investment
Blueprint (RIB) and the formation of the
Goldfields-Esperance Revitalisation Fund.

The Blueprint is a strategic document that
provides a shared vision, goals, strategies
and priorities for sustainable growth and
development. It is a roadmap for the future
social and economic growth and prosperity
of the region and will be an invaluable tool
to assist government, industry and the
community in future planning and decision
making. The Goldfields-Esperance RIB
will be released for public comment in due
course.

priority projects. We are pleased that two of
which have already received the go ahead,
being the construction of the Northern
Goldfields Regional Office Accommodation
Centre in Leonora and of a Community
Centre in Hopetoun.
All staff in the Kalgoorlie. Leonora and
Esperance offices continue to work closely
and effectively with key stakeholders and
partners and represent the Commission
on many economic and social community
forums. As is apparent in the Major
Achievements section, the GEDC
has close strategic links with the local
Chambers of Commerce and Industry,
Local Government, Regional Development
Australia. It works with Regional Community
Resource Centres and provides support to
community organisations.

The downturn in mining experienced by the
region in the past couple of years, with the
subsequent slowing down of the economy,
may have reached its peak and there is a
feeling that the worst may be over, auguring
well for the next year.

It was pleasing to note that in the Living
in the Regions 2013 project, promoted and
supported by the GEDC, the Goldfields-
Esperance had the highest number of
respondents reporting a strong affinity with
their region, and that close to 80% were
regularly involved in some of community
activity.

The Goldfields-Esperance Revitalisation
Fund has been allocated $186M over four
years for priority projects in the region.
$89.2M have been earmarked for key
initiatives, leaving a balance of $96.8 for
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COMMISSION OVERVIEW

The Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission is a WestAustralian State Government
Agency committed to encouraging and promoting economic and social activity in the
Goldfields-Esperance region of Western Australia. The GEDC is one of nine Regional
Development Commissions, established under the Regional Development Commissions
Act (1993).

The GEDC is responsible to The Honourable Terry Redman, MLA, Minister for Regional
Development; Lands; Minister Assisting the Minister for State Development.

A Board of Management comprising of ten members is drawn from Local Government,
Community representatives and Ministerial appointment. The Board sets the overall strategic
direction and goals for the Commission.

VibiaLL:
reN
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HONOURABLE TERRY REDMAN MLA
Minister for Regional Development; Lands; Minister

Assisting the Minister for State Development

GEDC BOARD OF MANAGEMENT•	 Chair
Deputy Chair

7 x Board members &
CEO Ex Officio

EXECUTIVE
ASSISTANT
Kalgoorlie

L3
(1 FTE)

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER
(1 FTE)

1 74=1:t 100

ANAGER
L7

(1 FTE)

LICY & PROJECTS
Kalgoorlie

L6
(1 FTE)

SENIOR
OJECT OFFICERS

Kalgoorlie
2 x L5

INANCE &
IN OFFICER

Kalgoorlie
L4

MANAGER
SOUTHERN RE

ESPERANC
L6

SENIOR
PROJECT OFFICER

Leonora
L5

(1 FTE)

SENIO
OJECT OF

Es eran

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

A review of the structure has commenced to ensure alignment with the Commission's
strategic future focus.
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BOARD C) MANAGEMEVT

The Minister of Regional Development appoints members to the Goldfields-Esperance
Development Commission's Board of Management that is comprised of a Chairman, Deputy
Chairman, seven members selected from community and local government appointments,
as well as Ministerial appointments and the Chief Executive Officer (Ex-Officio).

The Board is the governing body of the GEDC and is responsible for setting the strategic
direction of the commission. The Board holds bi-monthly meetings to consider matters
relating to the development of the region and provides advice to the Minister on regional
issues

Tony Crook
Chairman

Tony Crook was born and raised in Merredin in the Wheatbelt region where his family were pioneer
farmers. Tony was involved in the pastoral industry before entering the House of Representatives as
Member for O'Connor in 2010. He retired in 2013. Tony served as Chairman of the Western Division
of the Royal Flying Doctor Service for 10 years. and National President for 3 years. He is very
knowledgeable and passionate about the region.

1st term: 18 August 2014-30 June 2017
Representative: Ministerial

Deputy Chairman

John is based in Kalgoorlie and was a Member of the WA Legislative Assembly for 12 years, rising to
kik become Minister for Local Government, Regional Development, lands; Land, Goldfields-Esperance,

Great Southern, Resources and Employment Protection. He has a background in media and small
business and is currently involved with and chairs a number of community organisations.

1st term: 10 March 2014 - 30 June 2016
Representative: Community

Matthew is a councillor with the Shire of Leonora and managing director of a locally based company
with first hand experience of conducting business in the Northern Goldfields.

1st term : 26 Nov 2013- 30 June 2016
Representative: Local Government

Ron is a businessman and Mayor of the City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder. Mr Yuryevich has lived in
Kalgoorlie-Boulder all his life and is strongly committed to economic and social development in the
Goldfields-Esperance region.

12 months (6th year) 18 August 2014 - 30 June 2015
Representative: Local Government
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Malcolm is a practising Chartered Accountant who has lived in Esperance since 1977. He has had a
long involvement with sporting clubs and associations and is a Life Member of the Esperance Hockey
Club Association. He was elected to the Shire of Esperance Council in 2011 and is currently Shire
President.

1st term: 18 August 2014 - 30 June 2017
Representative: Local Government

Chris is currently Community Relations Advisor with Anglogold Ashanti Australia where she has worked
since 2008. She is a member of the Goldfields Education and Mining Alliance (2008-present).

1st term: 18 August 2014-30 June 2017
Representative: Ministerial

Kate is a cultural strategist who works with the government, not-for-profit and private sectors. Kate
moved to the Goldfields in 2008, based in Warburton in the Ngaanyatjarra Lands. She relocated to
Kalgoorlie in 2013.
Kate is a 2014-2016 Sidney Myer Creative Fellow, awarded for national cultural leadership and literature.
She serves as the Chair of Country Arts Western Australia and is the Vice-President of Regional Arts
Australia.

Kevin is the Managing Director at the Goldfields Institute of Technology. He is a Governing Council
Member and member of the Kalgoorlie Campus Council. Kevin has a strong background in Education
and Training.

1st term : 18 August 2014 - 30 June 2017
Representative: Ministerial

Born and raised in Esperance Gail is a descendant from the Noongar people who are from the South
East Coast of Western Australia.

Gail Reynolds-Adamson is a successful owner-director of an award winning Aboriginal Tourism
Company based in Esperance. She understands the concerns of the private sector, mining companies,
private industry, and provides consultancy in the arena of Cross Cultural Awareness, Cross Cultural
Intelligence and Corporate Responsibility. She is on the Board of Indigenous Business Australia, the
IBA Finance and Investment committee and is the chair of the South East Aboriginal Health Service
(SEAHS).

1st term: 18 August 2014 - 30 June 2017
Representative: Community

A/Chief Executive Officer - Ex Officio
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COMM-3SION PERFORMANCE

The Commission's achievements for 2013-14 have been underpinned by the revised
Goldfields Esperance Strategic Development Plan 2011-21 and Goldfields-Esperance
Development Commission Strategic Plan 2013-18, which align with the State Government's
commitment to working towards achieving a sustainable Western Australia. This enables
the Commission to meet the needs of stakeholders, capitalise on sustainable development
opportunities and provides a clear direction for our future actions and projects.

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
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jIAJOR ACHIEVEMENTS

$186M of Royalties for Region funding was allocated to the region through the Goldfields-
Esperance Revitalisation Fund. The funds, allocated over a four year period will fund priority
projects in the region. Three key initiatives have been notionally allocated funding - the
Kalgoorlie Boulder Community High School ($45M), the Goldfields Arts Centre ($6.2M) and
Great Eastern Highway overtaking lanes$38M).

Of the balance of $96.8 million , two projects have already received the go-ahead: a $7.2M
project to build a Regional Office and Administration Centre for the Northern Goldfields in
Leonora will go ahead following approval of $4.62M funding while the Shire of Ravensthorpe
will receive $2M towards the construction of a $4.5M new Community Centre at Hopetoun
scheduled to open in 2016.

The GEDC enjoys a high profile in Esperance and has strongly supported major projects
such as
■• the commencement and redevelopment of Esperance Primary School, Esperance

Residential College and the Esperance Hospital;
■ the construction of the Port Access Corridor, completed in April 2014; which removed

some of the conflict between freight and local traffic and provided a more efficient road
network for the Esperance community. The project included a new bridge linking Twilight
Beach Road with The Esplanade, February 2014, signalling the end of conflict between port,
local road and rail traffic.

vensthorpe Heavy Vehicle route - construction of 3.5 km of new alignment,
intersection works to tie in with the existing highway, and upgrades to the existing main
street of Ravensthorpe. Construction activities anticipated to commence in October 2014.
■ Completion of stages 1 and 2 of the Waterfront Redevelopment $59M project,

which to date received over $20M Royalties for Region funding. The upgrade include the
construction of a seawall along the Promenade, a headland near Tanker Jetty and complete
refurbishment of the James Street precinct which was opened by the Premier in June 2014.

The GEDC has kept championing the concept of PortLink, an aggregation of projects aiming,
to create a stronger, more robust Inland State Freight Corridor and open up the Goldfields-
Esperance, Pilbara and Mid West regions to regional and whole of State development
opportunities. The projects include:
■ an intermodal Freight Terminal in Kalgoorlie and associated freight logistics arrangements;
■ new road and railway alignments around the Kalgoorlie-Boulder city centre; and
■ the development of new road and railway corridors, connecting the resource rich Yilgarn

area and the Mid West and Pilbara regions to export ports in Esperance, Geraldton/Oakajee,
Port Hedland and Fremantle.
This transformational project is currently in the feasibility study stages.
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R41-< has contributed $ ,:.GM so far to the construction of this regional sports and recreation
facility which will provide for community based as well as elite sport facility. The first stages
of the project are completed and tenders have gone out for the next stage. The total project
cost is close to $19M.

This review, including business case and feasibility study, was completed in 2013,
demonstrating that a viable tertiary student accommodation facility could be developed
on-campus at WASM to meet the current and medium term requirements for the
Goldfields region. The study was completed in conjunction with the allocation of $20M for
the redevelopment of VVASM Agricola College which will include state of the art 180 room
student accommodation, bringing the total accommodation to 220 by 2017.

:,NNING AND STRATEGY

The GEDC completed the final draft of the Blue Print . This document will be an invaluable
tool to assist government, industry and the community in future planning and decision making
for the region. Furthermore, the RIB will be an integral document enabling a co-ordinated
approach across whole of government for improved regional development outcomes.

Esperance Region Economic Development Strategy
The GEDC was a key contributor to the development of the Strategy, in partnership with the
Shires of Dundas, Ravensthorpe, Esperance and the Esperance Chamber of Commerce
and Industry.

Esperance Town Centre Revitalisation Master Plan
GEDC partnered with the Shire of Esperance and the Esperance Chamber of Commerce to
develop the Master Plan.

■ Development of the Goldfields-Esperance Housing Needs Report
The Commission partnered with the Department of Housing and Landcorp for the production
of this regional report, part of a state wide project which aims to provide better understanding
of the locations of most need across the State and prioritise future investment.

EDUCATION AND THIANING

GEDC was a major contributor to regional workforce development, education, and training
outcomes through forums and partnerships such as the Goldfields-Esperance Workforce
Development Alliance and the Goldfields VET Network.

Assisted schools, industry and registered training organisations prepare for curriculum
changes in 2015, including a region-wide survey of students, industry profiling, employer
forums and industry consultation.
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GEDC continues to provide regional economic modelling (REMPLAN) services to regional
stakeholders for market and industry profiling, investment, planning, grants and stakeholder
interest.

The upgraded GEDC Website now includes full access to on line community and economic
profiles of the region containing economic and demographic details by industry sectors.

COMMUNITY

In an endeavour to keep the public informed and streamline the delivery of services, the
Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission has compiled a directory of services
provided by health and social services work agencies with regular updates.

TOULZIF	 ...TS AND CULTURE

The GEDC has been a key stakeholder in the development of the plan and its implementation
through its involvement with the Tourism Advisory Committee.

Coordinated by the GEDC, the plan is near completion.

The GEDC is the driver of this project which would see the development of an Arts and
Culture Trail over 2,300 kilometre from Hopetoun to Laverton. Preliminary consultation in
the region has been finalised and a consultant appointed to prepare a development Plan.

Kalgoorlie-Boulder will be hosting the 2014 Regional Arts Summit, Arts and Edges, in
October this year. The GEDC has been a key stakeholder, with representation on the Local
Engagement Group and on the National Executive Committee. The Summit is expected to
attract over 700 delegates to the region.

FORUMS

The GEDC continued to co-host successful events such as :

in partnership with the Esperance Chamber of Commerce in Industry (ECCI)

Hosted in Esperance, in partnership with ECCI and SCNRM (South Coast Natural
Resource Management), with over 150 attendees from across the state including over 30
representatives attending for free with support from Lotterywest.
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AUDITOR GEh H L

To the Parliament of Western Australia,

GOLDFIELDS-ESP ERANCE DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION

Report on the Financial Statements
I have audited the accounts and financial statements of the Goldfields-Esperance Development
Commission.
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2014,
the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Commission's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Commission is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
and the Treasurer's Instructions, and for such internal control as the Commission determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements
relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the Commission's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Commission, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission
at 30 June 2014 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. They are
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer's Instructions.

Report on Controls
I have audited the controls exercised by the Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission

16
Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission I Annual Report I 30 June 2014



during the year ended 30 June 2014.
Controls exercised by the Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission are those policies
and procedures established by the Commission to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and
investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have
been in accordance with legislative provisions.

Commission's Responsibility for Controls
The Commission is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal control to ensure
that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of public and
other property, and the incurring of liabilities are in accordance with the Financial Management
Act 2006 and the Treasurer's Instructions, and other relevant written law.

Auditor's Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
controls exercised by the Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission based on my audit
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of controls
to ensure that the Commission complies with the legislative provisions. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement and include an evaluation of the design and implementation
of relevant controls.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Opinion
In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission
are sufficiently adequate to provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and
investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have
been in accordance with legislative provisions during the year ended 30 June 2014.

Report on the Key Performance Indicators
I have audited the key performance indicators of the Goldfields-Esperance Development
Commission for the year ended 30 June 2014.
The key performance indicators are the key effectiveness indicators and the key efficiency
indicators that provide information on outcome achievement and service provision.

Commission's Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators
The Commission is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the key performance
indicators in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer's
Instructions and for such controls as the Commission determines necessary to ensure that the
key performance indicators fairly represent indicated performance.

Auditor's Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
key performance indicators based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing
and Assurance Standards.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the key performance
indicators. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the key performance indicators. In making these risk
assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Commission's preparation
and fair presentation of the key performance indicators in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the relevance
and appropriateness of the key performance indicators for measuring the extent of outcome
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achievement and service provision.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Opinion
In my opinion, the key performance indicators of the Goldfields-Esperance Development
Commission are relevant and appropriate to assist users to assess the Commission's performance
and fairly represent indicated performance for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Independence
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards, and other relevant ethical
requirements.

Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and
Key Performance Indicators
This auditor's report relates to the financial statements and key performance indicators of the
Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission for the year ended 30 June 2014 included
on the Commission's website. The Commission's management is responsible for the integrity
of the Commission's website. This audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the
Commission's website. The auditor's report refers only to the financial statements and key
performance indicators described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information
which may have been hyperlinked to/from these financial statements or key performance
indicators. If users of the financial statements and key performance indicators are concerned
with the inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the
hard copy of the audited financial statements and key performance indicators to confirm the
information contained in this website version of the financial statements and key performance
indicators.

DON CUNNINGHAME
ASSISTANT AUDITOR GENERAL FINANCIAL AUDIT
Delegate of the Auditor General for Western Australia
Perth, Western Australia
8 September 2014
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2014

The accompanying financial statements of the Goldfields-Esperance Development
Commission have been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the Financial
Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial
transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 and the financial position as at 30
June 2014.

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the
particulars included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.

Tony Crook
Chairman
3 September 2014

Steve Robins
Acting Chief Executive Officer
3 September 2014

Fauziah Antonio
Chief Finance Officer
3 September 2014
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COMPPETH. :. 1	r 41COivIE

NOTE 2014 2013

COST OF SERVICES

Employee benefits expense 6. 1,466,983 1,045,876

Supplies and services 7. 630,242 564,933

Depreciation and amortisation expense 8. 3,334 4,475

Accommodation expense 9. 188,508 189,040

Grants and subsidies 10. 2,594,055 2,398,725

Other expenses 11. 1,075 3,331

Total cost of services 4,884,197 4,206,380

Revenue
Other revenue 12. 6,926 45,212

Total Revenue 6,926 45,212
Total income other than income from State 6,926 45,212
Government
NET COST OF SERVICES 4,877,271 4,161,168

Service Appropriation 13. 374,000 1,490,000

Income received from Other State Agencies 13. 252,422

Royalties for Regions Fund 13. 3,108,779 4,148,460

Resources received free of charge 13. 15,508 12,161

Total income from State Government 3,750,709 5,650,621
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD (1,126,562) 1,489,452

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (1,126,562) 1,489,452

See also Note 36 'Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service'.

NB The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Fl
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIA POSITION
As at 30

ASSETS

NOTE 2014 2013

Cash and cash equivalents 24. 1,514,023 1,573,368

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 14. 777,062 1,963,758

Receivables 15. 12,371 16,212

Other current assets 17. 8,180 -

Total Current Assets 2,311,636 3,553,338

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 14. 46,904 -

Amounts receivable for services 16. 195,000 195,000

Property, Plant and equipment 18. 7,870 11,204

Intangible assets 19. - -

Total Non-Current Assets 249,774 206,204
Total Assets 2,561,410 3,759,542

LIABILITIES

Payables 21. 53,035 58,361

Provisions 22. 120,075 187,534

Total Current Liabilities 173,110 245,895

Provisions 22. 33,305 32,090

Total Non-Current Liabilities 33,305 32,090

Total Liabilities 206,415 277,985

Net Assets 2,354,995 3,481,557

EQUITY

Contributed Equity 23. 54,000 54,000
Accumulated surplus 2,300,995 3,427,557
Total Equity 2,354,995 3,481,557

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STAT7	 . !T 07 07°!-!!:..,!----!..7-.TP !!1', .! 7 UITY

Balance at 1 July 2012
Surplus/(deficit)
Total comprehensive income
for the period

Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners:
Capital appropriations
Total
Balance at 30 June 2013

Balance at 1 July 2013
Surplus/(deficit)
Total comprehensive income
for the period

Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners:
Capital appropriations

Total
Balance at 30 June 2014

NOTE CONTRIBUTED RESERVES ACCCH	 2TED
EQUITY

(DEFICIT)

TOTAL
EQUITY

23. 54,000 1,938,105 1,992,105
1,489,452 1,489,452
1,489,452 1,489,452

54,000 3,427,557 3,481,557

54,000 3,427,557 3,481,557
(1,126,562) (1,126,562)
(1,126,562) (1,126,562)

54,000 2,300,995 2,354,995

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
A

NOTE 2014 2013

Service appropriation 374,000 1,490,000
Royalties for Regions Fund 3,108,779 4,148,420
Income received from Other State Agencies 252,422
Net cash provided by State Government 3,735,201 5,638,420

Utilised as follows:

Employee benefits (1,546,257) (1,029,402)
Supplies and services (632,393) (616,212)
Grants and Subsidies (2,594,055) (2,398,725)

GST payments on purchases (327,614) (423,348)
GST payments to taxation authority (200)
Accommodation (173,000) (176,879)

Sale of goods and services 2,900 46,918
GST receipts on sales 2,000 200
GST receipts from taxation authority 334,080 423,348
Net cash used in operating activities 24. (4,934,339) (4,174,300)

Purchase of non-current physical assets (8,245)
Loss on disposal 3,331
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (4,914)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,199,138) 1,459,206
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 3,537,127 2,077,921

Cash And Cash Equivalents At The End Of The Period 24. 2,337,989 3,537,127

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTEr. 7-7

!',.10TE 1. AUSTRALIAi A(C;COUNTING STANDARDS

The Commission's financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 have been prepared
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. The term 'Australian Accounting
Standards' includes Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting
Standard Board (AASB).
The Commission has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian Accounting
Standards from their operative dates.

,rd

The Commission cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically
permitted by TI 1101 'Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other
Pronouncements'. There has been no early adoption of Australian Accounting Standards
that have been issued or amended (but not operative) by the Commission for the annual
reporting period ended 30 June 2014.

NOTE 2. St.LidnAFIY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a,
The Commission is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose financial
statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework. Statements
of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB as applied by
the Treasurer's instructions. Several of these are modified by the Treasurer's instructions to
vary application, disclosure, format and wording.
The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer's instructions impose legislative
provisions that govern the preparation of financial statements and take precedence over
Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and
other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB.
Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the
reported results, details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

(L'
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the
historical cost convention.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been
consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to
the nearest dollars.

HOYE 3.

'Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies' discloses judgements
that have been made in the process of applying the Commission's accounting policies
resulting in the most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.
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NOTE 4.

'Key sources of estimation uncertainty' discloses key assumptions made concerning
the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

The reporting entity comprises of the Commission.

The Commission's statutory role is to coordinate and promote economic development in
the Goldfield's-Esperance region of Western Australia. The resources sector, as the key
economic driver for the region, is expected to continue to have a turbulent year due to volatile
global sentiment for the commodities mined in this region. This could possibly have an
impact on employment thus impacting on attraction and retention of the regional population.

The Commission provides the following services:

To coordinate the identification of appropriate infrastructure, industries and enterprise
services to the region so as to ensure that they are provided effectively and efficiently to
meet the expanding needs of the region.

To promote the region's advantages and attractions by way of appropriate policies,
strategies and plans, so as to encourage investment that will contribute to economic growth,
employment and an increased population base in the region.

k".

AASB Interpretation 1038 'Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public
Sector Entities' requires transfers in the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result
of a restructure of administrative arrangements, to be designated by the Government
(the owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) before such
transfers can be recognised as equity contributions. Capital appropriations have been
designated as contributions by owners by TI 955
'Contributions by Owners made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities and have been
credited directly to Contributed Equity.

The transfer of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of
a restructure of administrative arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners
where the transfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal.

1,1

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.
Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:
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Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction.

Service Appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair value in the period in which the
Commission gains control of the appropriated funds. The Commission gains control of
appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited to the bank account or credited to
the 'Amounts receivable for services' (holding account) held at Treasury.

The Treasurer may make a determination providing for prescribed receipts to be retained
for services under the control of the Commission. In accordance with the determination
specified in the 2013-14 Budget Statements, the Commission retained
$239,348 in 2014 ($45,212 in 2013) from the following:

• proceeds from fees and charges;
• sale of goods;
• Commonwealth specific purpose grants and contributions;
• one-off gains with a value of less than $10,000 derived from the sale of property

other than real property; and
• other Commission revenue.

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions

Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Commission obtains control over the assets
comprising the contributions; usually when cash is received.

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at
their fair value. Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be
reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not donated.

Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as revenue at fair value in the period in which
the Commission obtains control over the funds. The Commission obtains control of the
funds at the time the funds are deposited into the Commission's bank account.

Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis. These include gains
arising on the disposal of non-current assets and some revaluations of non- ent assets.

Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing $5,000 or more are
recognised as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their
useful lives. Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing less than
$5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (other
than where they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total).
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Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure are initially recognised at cost.

For items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure acquired at no cost or for
nominal cost, the cost is the fair value at the date of acquisition.

Subsequent to initial recognition of an asset, the revaluation model is used for the
measurement of land, buildings and infrastructure and historical cost for all other property,
plant and equipment. Land, buildings and infrastructure are carried at fair value less
accumulated depreciation (buildings and infrastructure only) and accumulated impairment
losses. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined
on the basis of current market buying values determined by reference to recent market
transactions. When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market transactions, the
accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and
the net amount restated to the revalued amount.

In the absence of market-based evidence, fair value of land and buildings is determined
on the basis of existing use. This normally applies where buildings are specialised or where
land use is restricted. Fair value for existing use assets is determined by reference to
the cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset,
i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings is determined on
the depreciated replacement cost basis, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated
depreciation are restated proportionately.

Land and buildings are independently valued annually by the Western Australian Land
Information Authority (Valuation Services) and recognised annually to ensure that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from the asset's fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value of infrastructure has been determined by reference to the depreciated replacement
cost (existing use basis) as the assets are specialised and no market based evidence of
value is available. Land under infrastructure is included in land reported under note 18
'Property, plant and equipment'. Independent valuations are obtained every 3 to 5 years for
infrastructure.

When infrastructure is revalued, the accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately
with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying amount of the
asset after revaluation equals its revalued amount.

The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to
apply the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated useful life. Professional
judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction
between market type assets and existing use assets.

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure,
any revaluation surplus relating to that asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus.
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The E s set revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation
of non-current assets as described in note 18 'Property, Plant and equipment'.

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their
estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic
benefits.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed
annually. Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are:

Furniture and fittings	 10 years
Communications and Office equipment

	
5 years

Computer hardware	 3 years

Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally generated intangible
assets costing $50,000 or more are capitalized. The cost of utilising the assets is expensed
(amortised) over their useful lives. Costs incurred below these thresholds are immediately
expensed directly to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for
nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the
expected benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis.
All intangible assets controlled by the Commission have a finite useful life and zero residual
value.

The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are:

Software	 3 years

Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is treated as property, plant and
equipment. Software that is not an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as an
intangible asset. Software costing less than $5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition.

Website costs are charged as expenses when they are incurred unless they relate to
the acquisition or development of an asset when they may be capitalised and amortised.
Generally, costs in relation to feasibility studies during the planning phase of a website, and
ongoing costs of maintenance during the operating phase are expensed. Costs incurred in
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building or enhancing a website, to the extent that they represent probable future economic
benefits that can be reliably measured, are capitalised.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for any indication of
impairment at the end of each reporting date. Where there is an indication of impairment, the
recoverable amount is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to the recoverable amount
and an impairment loss is recognised. Where an asset measured at cost is written down to
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Where a previously
revalued asset is written down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation
decrement in other comprehensive income. As the Commission is a not-for-profit entity,
unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost.
The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset's depreciation is
materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant
change in useful life. Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the
accumulated depreciation/annortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of
asset's future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement
costs.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use
are tested for impairment at the end of each reporting period irrespective of whether there is
any indication of impairment.

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair
value is determined by reference to market-based evidence. Where fair value is determined
by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and
the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

The Commission holds operating leases for its office buildings and motor vehicles. Lease
payments are expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this represents the
pattern of benefits derived from the leased property.

In addition to cash, the Commission has two categories of financial instrument:
• Receivables;and
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes:

• Financial Assets
• Cash and cash equivalents
• Restricted cash and cash equivalents
• Receivables
• Amounts receivable for services
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Financial Liabilities
Payables

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally
equates to the transaction cost or the face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face
value because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not
required as the effect of discounting is not material.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted
cash and cash equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Accrued salaries (see note 21 'Payables') represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at
the end of the financial year. Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial
year end. The Commission considers the carrying amount of the accrued salaries to be
equivalent to its net fair value.

The accrued salaries suspense account (See note 14 'Restricted cash and cash
equivalents') consists of amounts paid annually into a suspense account over a period of
10 financial years to largely meet the additional cash outflow in each eleventh year when 27
pay days occur instead of the normal 26. No interest is received on this account.

The Commission receives income from the State Government partly in cash and partly
as an asset (holding account receivable). The accrued amount appropriated is accessible
on the emergence of the cash funding requirement to cover leave entitlements and asset
replacement.

(r

Receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible
amounts (i.e. impairment). The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis
and any receivables identified as uncollectible are written off against the allowance account.
The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective
evidence that the Commission will not be able to collect the debts. The carrying amount is
equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days.

Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Commission becomes obliged to
make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services. The carrying amount
is equivalent to fair value, as settlement is generally within 30 days.
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Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised where there is a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date.

All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees'
services up to the end of the reporting period.

Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period and is therefore considered to be 'other long-term employee benefits'. The
annual leave liability is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply
at the time of settlement.

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage
and salary levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation
contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of service. The
expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting
date on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible,
the estimated future cash outflows.

The provision of annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Commission does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
end of the reporting period.

The liability for long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months after the reporting
period is recognised and measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when
the liability is settled.

Long service leave that is not expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at
the time of settlement.

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage
and salary levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation
contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of service.
The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on
national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows.

Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the
Commission does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period. Conditional long service leave provisions are
classified as non-current liabilities because the Commission has an unconditional right to
defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of
service.
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The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other funds administer
public sector superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with
legislative requirements. Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for public
sector employees varies according to commencernent and implementation dates.

Employees may contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme now
closed to new members or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined
benefit lump sum scheme also closed to new members.

The Commission has no liabilities under the Pension or the GSS Schemes. The liabilities
for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS Scheme transfer benefits due to
members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer. All other
GSS Scheme obligations are funded by concurrent contributions made by the Commission
to the GESB. The concurrently funded part of the GSS Scheme is a defined contribution
scheme as these contributions extinguish all liabilities in respect of the concurrently funded
GSS Scheme obligations.

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of
either the Pension Scheme or the GSS became non-contributory members of the West
State Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Employees commencing employment on or after 16
April 2007 became members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012,
existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees have been able to choose
their preferred superannuation fund.

The Commission makes concurrent contributions to GESB or other funds on behalf of
employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government's Superannuation Guarantee
(Administration) Act 1992. Contributions to these accumulation schemes extinguish the
Commissions' liability for superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not
members of the Pension Scheme or GSS.

The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and GSS, and is
recouped from the Treasurer for the employer's share.

Employment on-costs, including workers' compensation insurance, are not employee
benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment
to which they relate has occurred. Employment on-costs are included as part of 'Other
expenses' and are not included as part of the Commission's 'Employee benefits expense'.
The related liability is included in 'Employment on cost provision'.

The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises
employer contributions paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions), W88. the GESBS, or
other superannuation fund.
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Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost that the Commission would
otherwise purchase if not donated, are recognised as income and as assets or expenses as
appropriate, at fair value, where they can be reliably measured.

Assets or services received from another State Government agency are separately disclosed
under Income from State Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures
presented in the current financial year.

NOTE 3. JUDGEMENTS MADE BY MANAGEMENT IF! APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements about the
application of accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements. The Commission evaluates these judgements regularly.

NOTE 4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experience
and various other factors that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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NOTE E.	 CLOSURF CHAP	 P,!Ac#7,(71 -17 POLICYAFD ESTIMATES

-if a

The Commission has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2013 that impacted on the Commission.

This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for measuring
fair value and requires additional disclosures for assets and liabilities
measured at fair value. There is no financial impact.

This Standard supersedes AASB 119 (October 2010), making changes
to the recognition, presentation and disclosure requirements.

The Commission assessed employee leave patterns to determine
whether annual leave is a short-term or other long term employee
benefit. The resultant discounting of annual leave liabilities that were
previously measured at the undiscounted amounts is not material.

This Standard supersedesAASB 1048 (June 2012), enabling references
to the interpretation in all other Standards to be updated by reissuing
the service Standard. There is no financial impact.

A

AASB 13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 101, 102, 108, 110,
116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 138, 139,
140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 & 132]

This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair value guidance in
other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as the result
of issuing AASB 13 in September 2011. There is no financial impact.

.0
AASB 119 (September 2011)[AASB 1.8. 101, 124, 134, 1049
& 2011-8 and Int 14]

This Standard makes amendments to other Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 119 in
September 2011. The resultant discounting of annual leave liabilities
that were previously measured at the undiscounted amounts is not
material.

This Standard amends the required disclosures in AASB 7 to include
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information that will enable users of an entity's financial statements to
evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements, including
rights of set-off associated with the entity's recognised financial assets
and recognised financial liabilities, on the entity's financial position.
There is no financial impact.

This Standard makes amendments to the Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations as a consequence of the annual
improvements process. There is no financial impact.

This Standard amends the mandatory effective date ofAASB 9 Financial
Instruments to 1 January 2015 (instead of 1 January 2013). Further
amendments are also made to numerous consequential amendments
arising from AASB 9 that will now apply from 1 January 2015. There is
no financial impact.

The withdrawal of Int 1039 Substantive Enactment of Major Tax Bills in
Australia has no financial impact for the Authority during the reporting
period and at balance date. Measurement of tax assets and liabilities
continues to be measured in accordance with enacted or substantively
enacted tax law pursuant to AASB 112.46-47.

The Standard introduces a number of editorial alterations and amends
the mandatory application date of Standards for not for profit entities
accounting for interests in other entities. There is no financial impact.

PartA of this omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards
arising from revisions to the Australian Accounting Conceptual
Framework for periods ending on or after 20 December 2013. Other
Parts of this Standard become operative in later periods. There is no
financial impact for Part A of the Standard.
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The Commission cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless
specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other
Pronouncements. Consequently, the Commission has not applied early any of the following
Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may impact the Commission.
Where applicable, the Commission plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards
from their application date.

OPERATIVE FOR
REPORTING
PERIODS
BEGINNING
ON/AFTER

This Interpretation clarifies the circumstances under
which a liability to pay a government levy imposed
should be recognised. There is no financial impact for the
Commission at reporting date.

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, introducing
a number of changes to accounting treatments.

The mandatory application date of this Standard was
amended to 1 January 2018. The Commission has not
yet determined the application of the potential impact of
the Standard.

'D 10	 1 Jai

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB
127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
and Int 112 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities,
introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred for
not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards Transtition Guidance
and Other Amendments. The adoption of the new
Standard has no financial impact for the Commission as
it doesn't impact accounting for related bodies and the
Commission has no interests in other entities.

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes
AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures, introduces new
principles for determining the type of joint arrangement
that exists, which are more aligned to the actual rights
and obligations of the parties to the arrangement.
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred
for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10. There is
no financial impact for the Commission as the new
standard continues to require the recognition of the
Commission's share of assets and share of liabilities for
the unincorporated joint operation.
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This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes
disclosure requirements in AASB 127	 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements, AASB	 128
Investments in Associates and AASB 131.
Interests in Joint Ventures. Mandatory application was
deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.
There is no financial impact.

The Commission has not yet determined the application
or the potential impact of the Standard.

'27
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB
127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements,
removing the consolidation requirements of the earlier
standard whilst retaining accounting and disclosure
requirements for the preparation of separate financial
statements. Mandatory application was deferred for
not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10. There is no
financial impact.

This Standard supersedes AASB 128 Investments in
Associates, introducing a number of clarifications for the
accounting treatments of changed ownership interest.
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred
for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10. The
adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact
for the Commission as it does not hold investments in
associates and joint operations.

This Standard supersedes AASB 1031 (February 2010),
removing Australian guidance on materiality that is
not available in IFRSs and refers to other Australian
pronouncements that contain guidance on materiality.
There is no financial impact.

This Standard requires specific budgetary disclosures in
the general purpose financial statements of not-for-profit
entities within the General Government Sector. The
Commission will be required to disclose additional
budgetary information and explanations of major
variances between actual and budgeted amounts,
though there is no financial impact.
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AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 121,
127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 10 &
12] [Modified By AASB 2010-7]

AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102,
108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137,
139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]
This Standard makes consequential amendments to other
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations
as a result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010. The
Commission has not yet determined the application or
the potential impact of the Standard.

A	 E4

the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards
[AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132,
133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 9, 16 & 17]

This Standard gives effect to consequential changes
arising from the issuance of AASB 10, AASB 11, AASB
127 Separate Financial Statements and AASB 128
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. For
not-for-profit entities it applies to annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The Commission
has analysed the suite of Consolidation and Joint
Arrangements Standards and determined that no financial
impact arises from adopting the various Standards.

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132
to address inconsistencies identified in applying some of
the offsetting criteria, including clarifying the meaning of
"currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off' and
that some gross settlement systems may be considered
equivalent to net settlement. There is no financial impact.
The Commission does not routinely hold financial assets
and financial liabilities that it intends to settle on a net
basis, therefore there is no financial impact.
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This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure
changes. There is no financial impact.

This Standard permitsthe continuation of hedge accounting
in circumstances where a derivative, which has been
designated as a judging instrument, is novated from one
counterparty to a central counterparty as a consequence
of laws or regulations. The model Commission does not
routinely enter into derivatives or hedges, therefore there
is no financial impact.

The amendments, issued in October 2013, provide
significant guidance in determining whether a not-for-profit
entity controls another entity when financial returns are
not a key attribute of the investor's relationship. The
Standard has no financial impact in its own right, rather
the impact result from the adoption of the amended AASB
10.

This omnibus Standard makes amendments to other
Standards arising from the deletion of references to AASB
1031 in other Standards for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014 (Part B), and, defers the application of
AASB 9 to 1 January 2017 (Part C). The Commission has
not yet determined the application or the potential impact
of AASB 9, otherwise there is no financial impact for Part
B.

The Commission has not yet determined the application
or the potential impact of the Standard.
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NOTE 6.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 2014 2013

Wages and salaries 1,163,985 817,718
Superannuation (a) 101,657 92,375
Long service leave (b) 55,278 25,631
Annual leave 146,063 110,152

1,466,983 1,045,876

(a) West State and Gold State (contributions paid).
(b) Includes a superannuation contribution component.

Employment on-costs expenses, such as workers' compensation, insurance, are included at note 11
'Other Expenses'.

NOTE 7.

SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 2014 2013
$ $

Communications 32,749 23,851
Consultants and contractors 456,142 386,305
Consumables 19,090 12,315
Travel 52,585 36,772
Maintenance 2,352 10,081
Employee related expenses 6,791 24,755
Other 60,533 70,854

630,242 564,933

NOTE 8.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISP.TION EXPENSE 2014 2013

Depreciation
Furniture and fittings 1,685 1,685
Office equipment 1,649 2,372
Total depreciation 3,334 4,057

Amortisation
Intangible assets-computer software 418
Total amortisation 418
Total depreciation and amortisation 3,334 4,475
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NOTE 9.

ACCOMMODATION EXPENSES 2014 2013

Lease rentals 185,996 164,534
Repairs and Maintenance 160 5,708
Power and Water 2,352 18,798

188,508 189,040

NOTE 10.

GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES 2014 2013

Boulder Bowling Club 1,000
City of Kalgoorlie Boulder 35,497 1,600,000
CSIRO 10,000
Department of Housing 26,058
Full Circle Therapies 3,000
Goldfields Tennis Club 3,000
Goldfields Women's Health Care 1,000
Grass Patch Community Development Inc. 1,000
Hopetoun Community Childcare 1,676
Kalgoorlie-Boulder Cemetery Board 26,500
Laverton Sports Club 1,200
Ngaanyatjarra Media 2,000
Noah's Ark 145,000
Rural Clinical School of WA 88,349
Shire of Esperance(a) 2,500,000 515,000
Shire of Leonora 27,500
University of Western Australia 5,000

2,594,055 2,398,725

(a) The grant expenditure to the Shire of Esperance relates to the Esperance Foreshore Protection
and Enhancement Project.

NOTE 11.

OTHER EXPENSES

Write off of Furniture & Office Equipment (a)
Other expenses (b)

2014	 2013

1,075 
1,075

3,331

3,331   

(a) The write off of Furniture & Office Equipment were the result of change to asset capitalisation
accounting policy.
(b) Includes workers' compensation insurance and other employment on-costs. The on-costs
liability associated with the recognition of annual and long service leave liability is included at
note 22 'Provisions'. Superannuation contributions accrued as part of the provision for leave are
employee benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.
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NOTE 12.

OTHER REVENUE FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 2014 2013

Rental Income 6,324 5,824
Other Grants 19,388
Other 602 20,000

6,926 45,212

NOTE 13.

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT 2014 2013

Appropriation received during the period: 374,000 1,490,000
Service appropriation (a) 374,000 1,490,000

Income received from Other State Agencies 252,422
252,422

Resources received free of charge:
Government Accommodation-Leasing 15,508 12,161

15,508 12,161

Royalties for Regions Fund:
Royalties for Regions Regional Community Services
(b)

1,402,997 3,600,040

Royalties for Regions Country Local Government Fund
(b)

548,420

Royalties for Regions Regional and Statewide 1,705,782
Initiatives (b)

3,108,779 4,148,460

3,750,709 5,650,621

(a) Service appropriations are accrual amounts reflecting the net cost of services delivered. The
appropriations revenue comprises a cash component and a receivable (asset). The receivable
(holding account) comprises the depreciation expense for the year and any agreed increase in
leave liability during the year.

(b) This is a sub-fund within the overarching 'Royalties for Regions Fund'. The recurrent funds
are committed to project and programs in WA regional areas.
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8,180
8,180

NOTE 14.

RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2014 2013

Current
Royalties for Regions Grants Scheme (a) 777,062 1,963,758

777,062 1,963,758

Non-Current
Accrued salaries suspense account (b) 46,904

46,904

(a) These unspent funds are committed to projects and programs in the region.
(b) Funds held in the suspense account used only for the purpose of meeting the 27th pay in a
financial year that occurs every 11 years.

NOTE 15.

RECEIVABLES

Current
Trade debtors
GST Receivable
TOTAL CURRENT

2014

4,039
8,332

2013

13
16,199

12,371 16,212

NOTE 16.

AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FOR SERVICES 2014 2013
(HOLDING ACCOUNT)

Current -
Non-Current 195,000 195,000

195,000 195,000

Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations. It is restricted in that it can only be
used for asset replacement or payment of leave liability.

NOTE 17.

OTHER ASSETS
	

20V	 2013

Current
Prepayments
TOTAL CURRENT
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQLAPIALTENT 2014 2013

Furniture and fittings at cost 30,491 30,491
Accumulated depreciation (28,805) (27,119)

1,686 3,372

Office equipment at cost 22,887 22,887
Accumulated depreciation (16,703) (15,055)

6,184 7,832

Computing hardware at cost 50,977 50,977
Accumulated depreciation (50,977) (50,977)

Communications equipment at cost 28,353 28,353
Accumulated depreciation (28,353) (28,353)

Total Plant And Equipment 7,870 11,204

All Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at cost.
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for furniture, equipment and computers, at the beginning
and end of the reporting period are set out in the table below:

FURNITURE
& FITTINGS

OFFICE
EQUIPMENT

COMPUTING
HARDWARE

COMMS.
EQUIPMENT

TOTAL

2014 $ $ $ $ $

Carrying amount at
start of year

3,371 7,833 - 11,204

Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
Depreciation (1,685) (1,649) - - (3,334)
Reclassification - - - -
Carrying Amount At 1,686 6,184 7,870
End Of Year

FURNITURE OFFICE COMPUTING COMMS. TOTAL
& FITTINGS EQUIPMENT HARDWARE EQUIPMENT

2013 $ $ $ $ $
Carrying amount at
start of year

5,056 5,291 - 10,347

Additions 8,245 - - 8,245
Disposals (3,331) - - (3,331)
Depreciation (1,685) (2,372) - - (4,057)
Reclassification -
Carrying Amount At 3,371 7,833 11,204
End Of Year
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NOTE 19.

INTANGIBLE ASSET 2014 2013
$ $

Computer software
At cost 11,809 11,809
Accumulated amortisation (11,809) (11,809)

There has been no movement in intangible assets.

NOTE 20. IMPAIF. HT OF 	 T S

There were no indications of impairment to plant and equipment, or intangible assets at 30 June
2014.

The Commission held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting
period. At the end of the reporting period there were no intangible assets not yet available for use.

All surplus assets at 30 June 2014 have either been classified as assets held for sale or written-off.

NOTE 21.

PAYABLES
	

2014	 2013
$	 $

Trade Payables 13,662
Accrued Salaries 20,115 23,603
Accrued expenses 32,920 21,096

53,035 58,361

NOTE 22.

PROVISIONS 2014 2013
$ $

Current
Employee benefits provision

Annual leave(a) 41,446 61,855
Long service leave(b) 77,793 125,679

119,239 187,534
Other provisions
Employment on-costs (c) 836

836
120,075 187,534
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Non-current

Employee benefits provision
Long service leave(b) 33,066 32,090

33,066 32,090

Employment on-costs (c) 239
239

33,305 32,090

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right
to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments
indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

2014	 2013

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period	 41,112	 61,855
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting 	 334
period

41,446	 61,855

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional
right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period

2014	 2013

	77,793	 125,679

	

33,066	 32,090

110,859 157,769

(c) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of
employment on-costs including worker's compensation Insurance. The provision is the present
value of expected future payments.

The associated expense, apart from unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in note
11 'Other expenses'.
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NOTE 23. EQUITY

Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the Commission. The
Government holds the equity interest in the Commission on behalf of the community.

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY 2014 2013

Balance at start of period 54,000 54,000

Contributions by owners
Capital appropriation
Total contributions by owners

Balance At End Of Period 54,000 54,000

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 2014 2013

Balance at start of period 3,427,557 1,938,105
Result for the period (1,126,562) 1,489,452
Balance At End Of Period 2,300,995 3,427,557

Total Equity At End Of Period 2,354,995 3,481,557

47
Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission I Annual Report I 30 June 2014



NOTE 24. NOTES TO THE STII-E;;dalkIT OF ASH FLOWS

RECONCILIATION OF CASH

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is
reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

2014 2013

Cash and cash equivalents 1,514,023 1,572,768
Restricted cash assets 823,966 1,963,758
Petty cash 600

2,337,989 3,537,126

RECONCILIATION OF NET COST OF SERVICES TO NET CASH FLOWS USED IN
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2014 2013

Net cost of services (4,877,271) (4,161,168)

Non-cash items:
Resources received free of charge 15,508 12,161
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3,334 4,475
Other expenses
Other non-cash adjustments 41

(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Current receivables (a) (4,025) 1,666
Other current assets (8,180)

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:
Current payables (a) (5,328) (59,499)
Current provisions (67,459) 15,766
Other current liabilities -
Non-current provisions 1,215 6,278
Net GST receipts/(payments) (b) 8,466
Change in GST in receivables/payables(c) (599) 5,980
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities (4,934,339) (4,174,300)

(a) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the
receivable/payable in respect of the sale/purchase. of non-current assets are not included.
(b) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transaction.
(c) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables.
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NOTE 25. NOTES TO THE STATEML-ENT OF CASH FLOWS

The Commission did not provide any resources free of charge.

NOTE 26. COMMITMENTS

NON-CANCELLABLE OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:

2014	 2013

$ $
Within 1 year 133,291 113,008
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 211,885 78,369

345,176 191,377

The Commission has commitments for property leases for an office and staffs housing that
are non-cancellable, with two properties with leases of up to five years.

NOTE 27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

At the reporting date, the Commission had no contingent liabilities or contingent assets.

NOTE 28. CONTROLLED ENTITIES

At the reporting date the Commission had no controlled entities.

ROTE 29. EVENT OCCURRING AFTER ....-3IA'..70r1TION DATEI 	IL

No material events have occurred after 30 June 2014.

49
Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission I Annual Report I 30 June 2014



NOTE 30, EXPLANATORY STATEiviEJ iT

Significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2014 and between the actuals
results for 2013 and 2014 are shown below. Significant variations are considered to be
those greater than 10% and $50,000.

SIGNIFICANT VARIANCES BE EEN ESTIMATE AND ACTUAL FOR 2014
2014 2014 VARIATION

$ $ $
BUDGET ACTUAL

Expenses
Employee benefits expense 1,114,000 1,466,983 352,983
Supplies and services 86,000 630,242 544,242
Grants and Subsidies 2,390,000 2,594,055 204,055
Other Expenses 150,000 1,075 (-148,925)

The total actual expenditure in 2013-14 increased by 20% when compared to 2012-13 budget
estimate.
The variances are due to the following:

(a) The increase in employee benefits is predominantly due to severance payments made under
the Enhanced Voluntary Severance Scheme.
(b) Increase in expenditure for grants and subsidies is due to the increase in expenditure for
regional grants expenditure.
(c) The increase in supplies and services is due to expenditure incurred for work relating to Regional
Blueprints and this is offset by the decrease in Other expenses due to budget re-alignment.

Income
Services Appropriation 221,000 374,000 153,000
Income received from Other State Agencies 0 252,422 252,422
Royalties for Regions fund 3,685,000 3,108,779 (-576,221)

The total actual revenue received has decreased by 4% when compared to 2013-14 budget estimate.
The variances are due to the following:

(a) Additional service appropriation was received as funding towards the severance payments
made under the Enhanced Voluntary Severance Scheme.
(b) Income received from Other State Government Agencies included a grant from Tourism WA
towards a research project and contribution from the Public Sector Commission towards final
payment for previous CEO.
(c) The Royalties for Regions funding for regional grants scheme has been reduced in this financial
year.
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SIGNIFICANT VARIANCES BE EEN ACTUAL RESULTS FOR 2013 AND 2014
2014 2013 VARIATION

$ $ $
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 1,466,983 1,045,876 421,107
Supplies and services 630,242 564,933 65,309
Grants and Subsidies 2,594,055 2,398,725 195,330

The total actual expenditure in 2013-14 increased by 16% when compared to 2012-13 actual
expenditure.
The variances are due to the following:

(a) The increase in employee benefits is predominantly due to severance payments made under
the Enhanced Voluntary Severance Scheme.
(b) The increase in supplies and services is due to expenditure incurred for work relating to
Regional Blueprints in this financial year.
(c) Increase in expenditure for grants and subsidies is due to the completion of a regional grant
project.

Income
Income received from other State Agencies 252,422 252,422
Service appropriation 374,000 1,490,000 (-1,116,000)
Royalties for Regions Fund 3,108,779 4,148,460 (-1,039,681)

The total actual revenue for 2013-14 received has decreased by 34% when compared to 2012-13
actual expenditure.
The variances are due to the following:

(a) Income received from Other State Government Agencies included a grant from Tourism WA
towards a research project and contribution from the Public Sector Commission towards final
payment for previous CEO.
(b) The operational activities for the Commission is now funded from the Royalties for Regions
and this decrease is offset by additional service appropriation received as funding towards the
severance payments made under the Enhanced Voluntary Severance Scheme.
(c) The Royalties for Regions funding for regional grants scheme has been reduced in this financial
year.
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n

Financial instruments held by the Commission are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash
and cash equivalents, receivables and payables. The Commission has limited exposure to
financial risks. The Commission's overall risk management program focuses on managing the
risks identified below.

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Commission's receivables defaulting on
their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Commission.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any
allowance for impairment as shown in the table at note 31 (c) 'Financial instrument disclosures'
and Note 15 'Receivables'.

Credit risk associated with the Commission's financial assets is minimal because the main
receivable is the amounts receivable for services (holding account). For receivables other
than government, the Commission trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties.
The Commission has policies in place to ensure that services are made to customers with
an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis with the result that the Commission's exposure to bad debts is minimal. At the end of the
reporting period there were no significant concentrations of credit risk.

Liquidity risk arises when the Commission is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due.
The Commission is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business.

The Commission has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdowns of
appropriations by monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to
meet its commitments.

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest
rates will affect the Commission's income or value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
Commission does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks.
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In addition to cash, the carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets
and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are:

2014 2013

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,514,023 1,573,368
Restricted Cash 823,966 1,963,758
Receivables 4,039 13
Amounts receivable for services 195,000 195,000

2,537,028 3,732,139
Financial Liabilities
Payables (a) 53,035 27,000

53,035 27,000

(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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The following table details the Commission's maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Commission's maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of
financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is based on information provided to senior management
of the Commission.
The Commission does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancement relating to the financial assets it holds.

AGED ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

NOT PAST	 UP TO	 MORE THAN IMPAIRED

CARRYING	 DUE & NOT	 3	 3-12	 1-2	 2-5	 5	 FINANCIAL

AMOUNT	 IMPAIRED	 MTHS	 MTHS	 YEARS	 YEARS	 YEARS	 ASSETS

$	 $	 $	 $	 $	 $
2014

Cash & cash equivalents
Restricted cash & cash equivalents

Receivables (a)
Amounts receivable
for services

1,514,023	 1,514,023
823,966	 823,966

4,039	 4,039
195,000	 195,000

2,537,028	 2,537,028

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

AGED ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS



PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED
NOT PAST	 UP TO	 MORE THAN IMPAIRED

CARRYING	 DUE & NOT	 3	 3-12	 1-2	 2-5	 5	 FINANCIAL

AMOUNT	 IMPAIRED	 MTHS	 MTHS	 YEARS	 YEARS	 YEARS	 ASSETS

$	 $	 $	 $	 $	 $
2013

Cash & cash equivalents
Restricted cash & cash equivalents

1,573,368	 1,573,368
1,963,758	 1,963,758

Receivables (a)	 13	 13
Loans and advances	 -
Amounts receivable for services 	 195,000	 195,000

	

3,732,139	 3,732,139

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).



The following table details the Commission's interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities.
The maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of
each item.

2014 INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE AND MATURITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE	 MATURTY DATES

	

WEIGHTED	 NOMINAL	 UP TO 3	 3 - 12	 1 - 2	 2 -5	 MORE

	

AVERAGE	 AMOUNT	 MTHS	 MTHS	 YEARS	 YEARS	 THAN

	

EFFECTIVE	 FIXED	 VARIABLE	 NON-	 $	 $	 $	 $	 $	 5 YEARS

	

INTEREST CARRYING INTEREST INTEREST INTEREST 	 $

RATE	 AMT	 RATE	 RATE	 BEARING

2014	 ok	 $
Financial Assets
Cash and cash	 - 1,514,023	 1,514,023 1,514,023
equivalents
Restricted cash and	 -	 823,966	 823,966	 823,966
cash equivalents
Receivables (a)	 -	 4,039	 4,039	 4,039
Amounts receivable 	 -	 195,000	 195,000	 -	 195,000
for services

- 2,537,028 - 2,537,028 2,342,028	 195,000

Financial Liabilities
Payables	 53,035	 53,035	 53,035

53,035	 53,035	 53,035



2013 INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE AND MATURITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE	 MATURTY DATES
WEIGHTED	 NOMINAL	 UP TO 3	 3 - 12	 1 - 2	 2 -5	 MORE

AVERAGE	 AMOUNT	 MTHS	 MTHS	 YEARS	 YEARS	 THAN

EFFECTIVE	 FIXED	 VARIABLE	 NON-	 $	 $	 $	 $	 $	 5 YEARS

INTEREST CARRYING INTEREST INTEREST INTEREST	 $

RATE	 AMT	 RATE	 RATE	 BEARING

2013	 %	 $
Financial Assets

Cash and cash	 - 1,573,368	 -	 1,573,368 1,573,368	 - -	 -
equivalents
Restricted cash and	 - 1,963,758	 1,963,758 1,963,758 -	 -
cash equivalents
Receivables (a)	 13	 -	 13	 13	 - -
Amounts receivable	 195,000	 -	 195,000	 -	 -	 195,000
for services

- 3,732,139 3,732,139 3,537,139	 195,000

Financial Liabilities
Payables 27,000

27,000
27,000	 27,000  
27,000	 27,000

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

None of the Commission's financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are sensitive to movements in interest rates, hence
movements in interest rates have no bottom line impact on the Commission's surplus or equity.

All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at
amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.



NOTT- :?.2. REMUNERATION OF MEMBERS OF THE ACCCUNTAM_E	 RIP(
Mr; 7.:10R OFFICERS

The number of members of the Commission whose total fees, salaries, superannuation,
non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year fall within the following bands
are:

Under $10,000

2014

8

2013

6
10,001 - 20,000 1 1

30,001 - 40,000 1

40,001 - 50,000 1

Base remuneration and superannuation 91,919 63,428
Annual leave and long service leave accruals -
Other benefits -
The Total Remuneration Of Member Of The Accountable
Authority 91,919 63,428

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Commission in respect
of members of the Commission. No members of the Commission are members of the Pension
scheme.

The number of senior officers, other than senior officers reported as member of the accountable
authority, whose total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits
for the financial year fall within the following bands:

2014 2013

100,001 - 110,000 1
190,001 - 250,000
400,001 - 500,000 1

Base remuneration and superannuation 317,518 191,387
Other benefits (a) 200,594 11,613
The Total Remuneration Of Member Of The Accountable
Authority 518,112 203,000

(a) Other benefits include annual leave, long service leave and final payment for previous CEO.
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NOTE 33. REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect of the audit for the current
financial year is as follows:

2014	 2013
$	 $

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and key performance	 35,900	 35,000
indicators

35,900	 35,000

NOTE 34. RELATED BODIES

The Commission has no related bodies as defined by Treasurer's Instruction 951.

NOTE 35. SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(a) Write-offs
There were no write-off of debts during the financial year.

(b) Losses through theft, defaults and other causes
There have been no losses through theft, defaults or from other causes.

(c) Gifts of public property
There has been no gifts of public property provided by the Commission in this financial year.
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NOTE 36. SCHEDULE OF INCOME AND EXPENSES BY SERVICE

FACILITATION OF
THE PROVISION

OF APPROPRIATE
INFRASTRUCTURE AND

INDUSTRY SERVICES
SERVICE 1

PROMOTION OF
THE REGION AND
ITS INVESTMENT
OPPORTUNITIES

SERVICE 2 TOTAL
2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13

Expenses

Employee benefits expense 878,723 626,480 588,260 419,396 1,466,983 1,045,876
Supplies and services 378,145 338,960 252,097 225,973 630,242 564,933
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,000 2,685 1,334 1,790 3,334 4,475
Accommodation expenses 113,105 113,424 75,403 75,616 188,508 189,040
Grants and subsidies 1,556,433 1,439,235 1,037,622 959,490 2,594,055 2,398,725
Other expenses 645 1,998 430 1,333 1,075 3,331
Total Cost Of Services 2,929,051 2,522,782 1,955,146 1,683,597 4,884,197 4,206,380

Income
Other revenue 4,156 27,127 2,770 18,085 6,926 45,212
Total income other than income from State 4,156 27,127 2,770 18,085 6,926 45,212
Government
NET COST OF SERVICES 2,924,895 2,495,655 1,952,376 1,665,513 4,877,271 4,161,168

Income from State Government
Service appropriation 224,400 894,000 149,600 596,000 374,000 1,490,000
Royalties for Regions 1,865,267 2,489,076 1,243,512 1,659,384 3,108,779 4,148,460
Income received from Other State Agencies 252,422 252,422
Resources received free of charge 9,305 7,297 6,203 4,864 15,508 12,161
Total income from State Government 2,098,973 3,390,373 1,651,737 2,260,248 3,750,709 5,650,621
Surplus/(Deficit) For The Period (825,922) 894,718 (300,639) 594,735 (1,126,562) 1,489,452



KEY PEii;OkiitiWii-ICE INDICATORS

We hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, are
relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess the Goldfields-Esperance Development
Commission's performance, and fairly represent the performance of the GEDC for the
financial year ended 30 June 2014.

Tony CrooV,
Chairman
3 September 2014

Steve Robins
Acting Chief Executive Officer
3 September 2014
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DISCLOSURES & LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

SAY

(Sourced	 from	 Statement	 of	 Comprehensive
Income)

(Sourced	 from	 Statement	 of	 Comprehensive

Income)

V-7 972

I

(Sourced from Statement of Financial Position)

(Sourced from Statement of Cash Flows) 1

12

(1) As specified in the Budget Statements.
(2) Further explanations are contained in Note 30 'Explanatory statement' to the financial
statements.
(a) The increase in 2013-14 actual Total expenses as compared to 2013-14 target is predominantly
due to additional expenditure made in this financial year for severance payments made under
the Enhanced Voluntary Scheme and compensation payments made under Section 59 of the
Public Sector Management Act 1994. There has been an increase in grant expenditure relating
to regional grants scheme.
(b) The decrease in 2013-14 actual income is predominantly due to a decrease in funding for
regional grants scheme.
(c) The movement in cash relates to payments for regional grants scheme made in 2013-14 that
were expected to be made in the prior year.

► New leadership and organisational restructure.
► Now fully funded through Royalties for Regions, there is a risk that the future implication

of this funding does not support ongoing funding initiatives and may impact on future planning
and development.
► Government budget constraints.
► The ability and resources to effectively implement the Goldfields-Esperance Regional
Investment Blueprint, within staffing capacity and budget restraints, recruitment freeze.
► The impact of the down turn in the resources sector may impact on future population

and industry growth particularly in the Dundas Shire.
► Poor mobile communication coverage and internet connection particularly in the

agricultural sector is a significant issue and is limiting productivity, innovation and social
amenity.
► The cost of power and connection for business has been identified as an issue for the

South East Region (Esperance and Ravensthorpe) and there is some cost discrepancies
between those connected on the SWISS and those who are not.
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■ The Department of Housing has just over 130 applicants waiting for assistance in
Esperance. A number of key social service groups including Escare, Restore Hope, and
Esperance Care Services have expressed extreme concern about the lack of housing for
a number of their clients. Unaffordable housing and a very low rental vacancy rate is also
having a negative impact on the town by preventing business and industry recruiting staff.

RELATIONSHIP TO GOVERNMENT GOALS

The Commission is the primary referral point in assisting those working on projects, and
business or industry to develop products/services that will benefit the whole Goldfields-
Esperance community.

Our desired outcome is to encourage and promote opportunities to build, increase
investment and to attract and retain population to the Goldfields-Esperance region.

Performance measures are defined and monitored for GEDC's strategic goals through the
Western Australian Government Budget Statements.

Ctronc;c3r Focus on the
Regions:

Greater focus on service
delivery, infrastructure
investment, and economic
development to improve
the overall quality of life in
remote and regional areas.

An environment, which is
conducive to the balanced
economic and social
development of the Gold-
fields-Esperance region.

■ Facilitation of the
provision of appropriate
infrastructure and industry
services.

■ Promotion of region
and its investment
opportunities.
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KEY EFFECTIVENESS INDICATORS

The key effectiveness indicators measure the extent to which performance contributes to
improved client satisfaction.

The GEDC's effectiveness indicators are measured by undertaking an annual survey of key
clients. This survey is conducted by an independent market researcher, Asset Research.
Electronic questionnaires were sent to 240 clients that had contact with the GEDC in the
previous 12 month period. Asset Research received 168 completed surveys, resulting in a
70% response rate of the sampling frame.

Contact with clients and key stakeholders assists in providing opportunities to develop
business and employment opportunities, reduce obstacles to economic growth and increase
trade activity. Success in these areas will assist the GEDC to achieve its stated outcome – an
environment conducive to the balanced economic and social development of the Goldfields-
Esperance region.

Overall, the perception of the performance of the GEDC has decreased slightly from 2013
to 2014 across goal areas. Despite this, all scores reflected an above-average assessment.

The GEDC will continue to work towards achieving its targets. A comparison with previous
years is summarised in the following table.
* The report is available in full from our web site.

The GEDC makes a positive contribution to the
economic and social development of the region

1 0 7Q
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DISCLOSURES & LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

KEY EFFICIENCY INDICATCRS

The key efficiency performance indicators measure the overall efficiency in achieving the
desired outcomes. These outcomes are linked to Government goals.

Y —

Client satisfaction with the provision of an
environment conducive to the balanced
economic and social development of the
Goldfields-Esperance region.

Facilitation of the Provision of Appropriate
Infrastructure and Industry Services
Average cost per chargeable hour.
—
Promotion of Region and Its Investment
Opportunities.
Average cost per chargeable hour.

$7

(1) As specified in the Budget Statements.
(2) Explanations for the variations between targeted and actual results are presented in Note 30
'Explanatory (a) Statement' to the financial statements.
(b) The cost per service in Service 1 has increased due to increase in operational cost in facilitation
and coordination of infrastructure and industry services.
(c) The cost per service in Service has increased due to increase in resources spent in promoting
the region and the investment opportunities in this region.
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910

Full Time Permanent
Full Time Contract
Part Time Measured on a FTE Basis

4 2

0

DISCLOSURES & LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

OTHER FINANCIAL DISCLO-EUREF & LEGAL REQUIREMENTE

p.'	
4: Se

The Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission does not charge for its services,
brochures and publications.

No capital works were undertaken this financial year.

Staff Profile as at 30 June 2014:

The GEDC has a commitment to the development of its employees. Our strategies are to
build a highly skilled, professional, and fair workforce with the ability to adapt to a changing
work environment.

During the financial year, our employees received a broad range of training in-house and
externally.

In compliance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907 the Commission monitors
expenditure incurred during the financial year in relation to advertising agencies, market
research organisations, polling organisations, direct mail organisations and media advertising
organisations. The details of the Commission's expenditure in these areas are as follows:

.

Advertising Agency Services Kalgoorlie Boulder Chamber of Commerce
Business Directory

336

Market Research Organisations -
Polling Agencies -

Direct Mail -
Media Advertising Organisations Adcorp Australia Limited

ABG Pages Pty Ltd

622
140

There were no amendments to the Regional Development Act in 2013/14.
The Commission's operational funding is provided for under the Royalties for Regions Act.
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COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC SECTOR STANDARDS AND ETHICAL CODES

The Commission has had no compliance issues during the 2013-14 financial year regarding
Public Sector Standards, the WA Code of Ethics or the internal Code of Conduct.

The Commission continues to regularly review and update internal policies to ensure
compliance with Public Sector Standards and the WA Code of Ethics.

COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC SECTOR MANAGEMENT ACT 1993 31(1)

1. In the administration of the Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission, the
Commission has complied with the Public Sector Standards in Human Resource
Management, the Western Australian Public Sector Code of Ethics, and our Code of
Conduct.

2. The Commission has in place procedures designed to ensure such compliance and
conducted appropriate internal assessments to satisfy that the statement made in 1
is correct.

3. During 2013-14 the Commission's Code of Conduct was revised and circulated to all
staff and board members.

4. The applications made for breach of standards review and the corresponding
outcomes for the reporting period are:
Number lodged	 1
Number of breaches found	 1
Number still under review	 Nil

Steve Robins
Acting Chief Executive Officer
3 September 2014
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DISCLOSURES & LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

DISABILITY ACCESS AND INCLUSMN PLAN (DAIP)

Through the Commission's DAIP we are committed to delivering the same level of services
to people with disabilities. The plan ensures we maintain the six outcomes identified,
effectively. The plan was updated during 2013/14 and advertised to the general public via
our website and Public Notices in the Kalgoorlie Miner newspaper.

The DAIP will ensure that people with disabilities:

■ have the same opportunities as other people to access the services of and any events
organised by the Commission;

■ have the same opportunities as other people to access the agencies buildings and
facilities;

■ receive information from the Commission in a format that will allow ready access to it;
receive the same level and quality of service from the Commission;
have the same opportunities to make complaints to us;

■ have the same opportunities as other people to participate in public consultation

RECORD KEEPING PLAP

As required by the State Records Act 2000 the Commission has developed and maintains a
Record Keeping Plan that is consistent with the principles outlined in the Act and has been
approved by the State Records Office. The plan

The Commissions Record Keeping Plan and systems are aligned with the Commission's
Record Management procedures and Retention and Disposal Schedule, it is reviewed not
less then once every five years in consultation with staff and the State Records Office to
ensure it meets the Commission's needs and all compliance requirements.

The Commission does not have a formal record keeping training program in place due to
the small number of staff and diverse locations of the offices. Guidelines and face to face
training is provided to new staff at their usual base. Training for existing staff is provided on
'as needs' basis.

PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURES

The Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 requires the Commission to:

1) Facilitate the disclosure of public interest information;
2) Provide protection for those who make disclosures;

and
3) Provide protection for those who are the subject of a disclosure.

In accordance with the Act, the Commission has duly appointed a Public Interest Disclosure
Officer and has provided awareness sessions with all staff.

Nil public interest disclosures were received during 2013-14 financial year.
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OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY, HEALTH, AND INJURY MANAGEMENT

The Commission is committed to providing and maintaining a safe and healthy work
environment for all employees and other persons providing services at or visiting our
premises. This includes management acknowledging its duty to provide and maintain a
working environment in which employees and other persons are not exposed to hazards.
The principles, procedures, and guidelines underpinning this commitment are contained
in Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission Occupational Safety and Health Policy
and the Vehicle Policy.

The Commission communicates any changes and updates with its staff through regular
team meetings, phone, email and documents saved to the Commission's shared network
drive accessible by all staff. A representative call for nominations process is underway with
elected representatives to receive recognised training in accordance with the legislative
requirements.

The Commission has an Injury Management System that contains a 'Return to Work
Program' to enable injured workers to return to the workplace as soon as practical. Although
the Commission has not received any Workers Compensation claims in 2013-14 financial
year and is dedicated to ensuring that safety and health management systems are in place
and reviewed regularly.

The Commission has maintained its NIL Lost Time Incidence Rate and Lost Time Frequency
rate. The results are outlined in the table below:

Number of fatalities 	 Zero

Lost time injury incident rate 	 Zero

Lost time injury severity rate 	 Zero

% of injured workers returned to work within 28 weeks 	 No injuries reported

% of mangers aware of OH&S management responsibilities 	 100%

69
Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission I Annual Report I 30 June 2014



I ONTACT DETAILS

The Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission has
three offices:

FAUGOORLIE-EOULDER
Ground Floor, Viskovich House
377 Hannan Street
PO Box 751
Kalgoorlie WA 6430

+61 8 9080 5000
+61 8 9021 7941

EFF ERANCE
Suite 26c Dutton Arcade
91 Dempster Street
PO Box 632
Esperance WA 6450

+61 8 9083 2222
+61 8 9071 3765

LEONORA
Leonora Shire Office
Tower Street
PO Box 56
Leonora WA 6438

+61 8 9037 6944
+61 8 9037 6295
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